
Meeting Minutes SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1
THE SPECIAL MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Muriel Morabito Community Center, 29 Westbrook Drive, Cortlandt Manor, NY on Wednesday, April 28th, 2010.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Loretta Taylor, Chairperson presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




John Bernard, Board Member  



Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member 




Ivan Kline, Board Member




Susan Todd, Board Member 



Robert Foley, Board Member



Steven Kessler, Board Member (Absent) 


ALSO PRESENT:




Edward Vergano, Department of Technical Services 




John J. Klarl, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney




Mr. Jeff Rothfeder, CAC member 



Chris Kehoe, Planning Department



Sarah Brown, FP Clark Associates, Planning Consultant




Steve Coleman, Town Wetlands Consultant   




Susan Fasnacht, WSP Cells, Civil Engineering Consultant




Ray Dominguez, Jacobs Engineering, Town Traffic Engineer



Greg Deloria, Jacobs Engineering




Tim Miller, Planner 




Mike Sheber, Kirquel Development 




Ron Wegner, Engineer Consultant 




Ted Wells, Tim Miller Associates – Environmental Consultant




Fred Wells, Tim Miller Associates – Environmental Consultant



Beth Evans, Tim Miller Associates – Bio-Diversity Consultant



Brian Dempsey, TRC Consultant

CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there are no changes to the agenda as far as I know.


*



*



*

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we are all attending this meeting because we have some great interest in how things will turn out tonight.  There are and have been before us a number of issues from Steep Slopes to drainage to traffic and other environmental and biodiversity issues.  We ask that our consultants be here so that they can address some of those concerns that we have.  I am at this point asking the members of our Board to identify specific concerns that they may have about the project as it stands right now.  I’m thinking that we may want to work first from what we think we might be able to approve to see, in fact, if we can work with the applicant and get some agreement on some things and then we vote if we cannot come to some level of agreement then we will move to the next stage which would be looking at what we would need to do to deny the project.  I don’t know that’s the mindset of the Planning Board members entirely.  I think that there may some things that if we can work out with the applicant, we can move forward with, perhaps not complete satisfaction of the residents of the area, but certainly a good deal of affirmation that we are really working to see if we can make things better for both the residents and the applicant.

OLD BUSINESS 
PB 13-05    a.
Application and Final Environmental Impact Statement latest revision dated January 14, 2010 by  Kirquel Development Ltd. for Preliminary Plat Approval and Steep Slope, Wetland and Tree Removal Permits for a 22 lot major subdivision of 52.78 acres of property located on the west side of Lexington Ave. and at the south end of Mill Court as shown on a 15 page set of drawings entitled “Site Development for Residences at Mill Court Crossing” prepared by Cronin Engineering, P.E., P.C. latest revision dated July 8, 2009 and on drawings entitled “Preliminary Landscape Plan” and “Stone Wall Plan” both prepared by Tim Miller Associates, Inc. and dated July 21, 2009.
Mr. Ed Vergano stated just a background note.  Last week the Town staff met with the Planning and Technical consultants hired by the Town to discuss the issues brought up at the March and April public hearings.  We’re going to be hearing from the traffic consultants, from the drainage consultant, from the planner, and from the biodiversity consultant in that order to go over the issues that were brought up again by the public at those two meetings.  With that said I’d like to hand it over to our traffic consultant.
Mr. Ray Dominguez from Jacobs Engineering, Traffic engineer, Greg Deloria, Traffic engineer.
Mr. Ed Vergano stated once again self-retained by the Town.
Mr. Ray Dominguez stated after revisiting the traffic impact study done as part of the EIS for the project, I guess the traffic concerns can be summarized into three major issues: 1) Trip generations, what’s coming in-and-out from the first project.  Traffic; there was a background traffic that was the base of the analysis.  3) Accidents and then the safety issue in the area.  First to start off, the trip generation; the concerns for many people and the public, that the rate that was used to project how many trips are coming in-and-out of the proposed project may be inaccurate.  What was used in the analysis was from the ITE trip generation manual which is basically surveys from across the country of similar uses of typical rates of trips coming in-and-out of various uses and that’s what the project was based on.  However, if there is something else available of a similar use and within the vicinity such as the 12 units that’s already there in Mill Court, that would provide us with a better understanding of what would come out of the residential home at this place.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked which would be logical check since we’re talking about a similar type of element that currently exists.

Mr. Ray Dominguez stated that is correct, from the ITE manual there are a lot of variations from how many bedrooms and that can change what the trip rate out of that home is.  If the homes that are existing there at Mill Court are already similar to what the developer is proposing that would be a much better measure of what would be coming out of the proposed project.  That’s the first issue with trip generation.  In addition to that we already have data in 2005 coming out of Mill Court so we have an idea of what’s coming in-and-out and you can develop a rate from that.  

Ms. Susan Todd asked are you saying that the houses that are proposed are bigger?

Mr. Ray Dominguez responded you know what’s coming in-and-out of Mill Court, there are 12 existing homes from there and from that you can develop an average rate and apply that to what the developer is planning to put out there. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked why wasn’t that information used in your original analysis if it’s been available for a while now?

Mr. Ray Dominguez responded it’s standard practice to use the ITE manual but again..  

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated it would have been helpful to have that, the local data.
Mr. Ray Dominguez responded it would have been helpful to have that upfront.  2) Traffic; after looking at what was in the EIS traffic data dates back to 2005.  Typically with traffic engineering you look at the – traffic data is usually good for three years.  We have that issue of it being old and then secondly, 2007 is the build year so you’re projecting out to be done three years ago.  Whatever’s out there between 2007 and 2010, any growth or any plan development is not included in the analysis.  That’s another issue which you know that’s something you can take a look at, you do some counts, you do some back checking to confirm if the data’s still good or if it’s not then you need to move forward and perhaps revisit the whole situation.  Also what would have been helpful is to have ATR’s (Automatic Traffic Recorders) which will help tell if the data that was taken or collected is a typical day out there because in 24 hours you can climb out throughout the day 24 hours, 7 days a week.  You find out if that Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday is what’s typical.
Mr. Ed Vergano stated there is ATR data available from the County from the 2005 study?

Mr. Ray Dominguez responded that’s turning moment data, that’s not automatic traffic recorder.  There’s two types of data: there’s the data you can collect for the peak hours that’s more detailed and then you collect automatic traffic recorder data which is 24 hour – I have missed two days and to find out Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday what’s the typical amount of volume.
Mr. Robert Foley asked were ATRs used in the original study in ’05?

Mr. Ray Dominguez responded no ATRs were not used.

Mr. Robert Foley stated and only for three days you’re recommended as opposed to right contiguous to that Yorktown did it with ATRs for a 10-day period. 

Mr. Ray Dominguez responded it also depends on the use that they plan.  You figure that the peak for this type of use would be Tuesday, Wednesday, and Thursday during the workweek either in the evening or in the pm.
Mr. Robert Foley asked no weekend day?


Mr. Ray Dominguez responded typically not…

Mr. Robert Foley stated knowing that area and the reasons why that cars use Strawberry to Lexington and down to Red Mill to avoid a Route 6 problem there.  Wouldn’t that be a key factor to include it on a Saturday?

Mr. Ray Dominguez responded yes but again that’s not related to the project.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I think it would have an impact.  You’re talking about cars that are going down Red Mill or to that intersection which is a key intersection to the project, so that has an impact and then with the additional houses of the project no matter where they end up being that pours more cars.  To me, as a lay person, I think it’s important at any rate.

Mr. Greg Deloria responded there’s not much of a cost differential between doing a three day, three days is a minimum, one week gets you the weekend.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it wouldn’t hurt to do a Saturday because it’s a major shopping day for everybody, they’re in-and-out of their homes two or three times going back-and-forth to get one thing or the other.

Mr. Ray Dominguez stated moving further, the accident data seeking analysis that was presented in the EIS it dates back to between 1999 and 2002.  According to the comments and concerns or related to safety that’s getting worse.  By getting accident data from 1999 to 2002 doesn’t really capture the most recent so we would recommend that you can even get the most recent accidents and better traffic reports and compare that to what we already have in the EIS which from ’99 to ’02 you can see if there’s a trend, if there’s a higher problem out there now.  The other issue is Red Mill, Oregon, Westbrook Drive that traffic circle that was not in existence yet so that was not captured by the accident report dated back to ’99 to 2002.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked did you get any figures?  There was something that I read I can’t even remember where I saw it because in one of the documents that said something about there were either two or three accidents at one spot along Red Mill and I remember thinking this is a residential area and it said “only” and I think I recall when I saw “there are only x accidents on this road.”  This is a residential road and to have “only” 3 is a whole lot of accidents in that one spot.

Mr. Ray Dominguez responded I’m not quite sure what context.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t remember where I saw it.

Mr. Ray Dominguez responded it was a three year period but what really caught my eye is the second highest location recorded in the EIS was this Westbrook around about location.  Maybe it’s improved since the traffic circle is there.  Maybe it’s exacerbated a problem.  A simple check into that solves that issue.  

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked what’s your conclusion based on what you just said on the ‘02 analysis report.

Mr. Ray Dominguez responded at the very least confirm that the data that was collected is still good.  Right?  And then do a little bit of research to find out what the deal here is and see if there’s anything else that was not included in the original analysis in the form of other planned developments and then add them and then just rework it and see if the results are still the same.  

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated in other words there are conclusions that reached in the existing analysis are flawed to the extent they’re based on old data?

Mr. Ray Dominguez responded I wouldn’t use the word “flawed” but I think it needs to be revisited and there’s no way to – the ATR data would have helped in the confirmation process. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated you’re saying that the accident reports during that period of ’99 to 2002 of course you’d have to update it because of the traffic circles and the other intersection Oregon, Red Mill, Westbrook?  Do you know if those reports included Trolley, Red Mill, the top of and included the intersection at the top of Red Mill at Lexington/Strawberry and Red Mill?  I don’t remember the report.  It goes back 8 years or more than 8 years.
Mr. Greg Deloria responded whether it’s included or not we should revisit that one as well because that’s changed because of the type of column…
Mr. Robert Foley continued it was even Foothill in the Yorktown side there’s Foothill/Strawberry a bad intersection.

Mr. Ray Dominguez responded and 2002 was a long time ago.  A lot has happened in regards of us changing geometry of the roadway or the planned developments.  It’s not a difficult thing to do a little look-up to see what’s going on out there. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked would this have been prior to the traffic column on Red Mill a number of years ago with the signs [inaudible18:36] do you know that – that may have been prior to that?

Mr. Ed Vergano asked what about traffic improvements?

Mr. Ray Dominguez responded at what locations?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded Strawberry and Red Mill Road.

Mr. Ray Dominguez responded I think that’s something we’d have to take a look at further.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated everybody’s aware of the Q that occurs on Strawberry as you turn onto Red Mill Road.
Mr. Ray Dominguez stated we’re currently looking into it but it’s something that we would have to – it’s in the process.  
Mr. Greg Deloria responded we’ve developed some sketches and some potential [18:10] to look at and consider.  We’ve got to take a second look at the geometry, at the space that’s allowed out there and get a little bit smarter but we’ve come up with a couple of things that might help.

Mr. Robert Foley stated and you factor in the Daycare Center egress and so forth that I told you and the Mosque now also. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated John, our 62 days is running. 

Mr. John Klarl responded yes.

Mr. Ivan Kline asked has there been any discussion with the applicant of its reconsidering the use it expressed at the last meeting? 

Mr. John Klarl stated I think I sat down just before the meeting Mr. Sheber wanted to offer some comments along those lines and I said “wait until the Chairperson acknowledges you.”  I think Mr. Sheber wants to offer some comments.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I’ll wait until the Chair takes that’s appropriate.  Just curious because it’s all well and good to hear about all the things we should be doing and we have a clock running. 

Mr. John Klarl stated Mr. Sheber, apparently he spoke to a couple of people.

Mr. Mike Sheber stated I have talked to some of the Planning Board members and I did want acknowledge to the Board we were a little hasty at the last meeting and I apologize for that.  We certainly would be agreeable to a certain extent to discuss certain issues that are being brought up at the public hearing and also tonight.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated were there any additional issues or concerns from members of the Board or committees concerned.

Ms. Susan Todd stated I think the gentleman raised some important points about the data being not up-to-date and that if there’s a way to get that up-to-date and looked at more carefully it would be smart.

Mr. Robert Foley stated and also, as I’ve looked into the traffic more, certainly Mr. Miller and hope from my past history on this with other projects and in talking and listening to the testimony of one of the residents Mr. Potts who’s here tonight, I’m beginning to wonder how these professionals, and no offense here, expert opinion reports are analyzed; what data goes in, what comes goes out, the computer modeling the curb fitting whatever you want to call it, circular reasoning and the more I read and I should read more on it, I’m not an engineer or a statistician but I’m beginning to have my doubts of how some of the conclusions were reaching not just with this project but others.  I know you’re going by the Institute of Traffic Engineering and the other manual you mentioned the ITE, maybe that’s it, but from what I’ve heard there may be some changes there in the future, some engineers that we talked to.  I have those concerns.  I won’t get into all the particulars of it.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked when these studies are done do you go out for the entire time, whatever you allot for whatever day, 3 hours, 4 hours, are you all there or is just some kind of mechanism that records movement back-and-forth?

Mr. Ray Dominguez responded typically you’re not there for the whole time but just to get a feel of what’s going on during the traffic count just to make sure that when you get the data back it’s…
Mr. Greg Deloria stated these are manual traffic counts.  They’re done by people at each intersection and observations are being made by people.  They’re supplemented by what he was referring to as the ATR, the automatic traffic recorder counts which gets you overall a course of the day and also backs up the manual counts so that, because we’re not all perfect we might have counted 100 and the machine counted 105 and we call it 103.

Mr. Robert Foley stated so you’re using both methods the ATR and manual, it’s better, it’s more prudent.

Mr. Greg Deloria stated it backs you up.  Somebody didn’t fall asleep and this one fades out. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated traffic passing the volume and the turning rate. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated in the audience is the Planning Director of the Town of Yorktown and the Town Supervisor from Yorktown and he pointed out that any improvements at the intersection of Strawberry and Lexington would involve the approval of the Town of Yorktown because it’s in the Town of Yorktown.  Just to make that clear for the record.

Mr. John Klarl stated in the middle of Lexington, of course, is the Board of the two Towns.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’ve got so many things that we’ve got to cover.  Do we want to move on now?

Mr. Mike Sheber responded no we don’t want to move on yet.  

Mr. Tim Miller stated we have a lot of questions about the comments of the traffic consultants on traffic our traffic engineer is here.  We want to have a dialogue so if we could ask our questions that would be great.  Brian Dempsey from TRC who did a traffic study.  Brian you want to ask your questions?
Mr. Brian Dempsey stated I’ll take it in the order of this says.  Trip generation we use what is standard to be required which is the ITE trip generation which is consistent throughout Westchester County of what’s to be used.  It’s been used in the other studies within the Town and, in fact, Edwards and Kelsey which is the predecessor firm of Jacob’s group to the detailed review of our traffic study and said that actually our trip generation was conservative.  If we use what is coming out of Mill Court the trip generation will actually be very similar to what we use.  That would really have no effect.  In addition, where it’s less units than what we studied in the traffic study it would further reduce the trip generation.  Our trip generation numbers we’re very comfortable with.  I think that they are appropriate.  In terms of the ATRs; that was not something that was in the scope and it’s not something that’s definitely utilized in Westchester for a driveway to this size but we did study 11 different intersections so there is a balance of check between the various intersections so there was a balance there.  Saturday was not looked at because we were scoped by the Town to look at a.m. and p.m. peak hours and that’s what we did.  In addition, although we used a 2007 build year which was decided upon during the scoping process we included 28 adjacent developments plus the 2% background road and we received traffic counts that reached traffic counts for the intersection of Strawberry and Lexington that was done by John Collins Associates, the consultants for Yorktown.  At that intersection and our numbers are actually 20% higher than those recently counted by John Collins at that location.  That was submitted to the Town.  That information was submitted to the Town.

Mr. Foley asked when were those counts?
Mike Sheber responded 2009.
Mr. Brian Dempsey responded 2009 counts by John Collins consultants for Yorktown.  In terms of some data that was used that what was available at the time of the traffic study.  The information is what we received from New York State DOT and that was available at that time.  Our traffic study was reviewed by Edwards and Kelsey and was determined to be appropriate.  They agree with our growth rates, our trip generation and all of our service findings. 

Mr. John Bernard asked would you agree that maybe it would pay to take a look at more current accident results?

Mr. Brian Dempsey responded I’m not sure what that would get you because the amount of trips being generated by this is not significant or will it have any effect on current accident rates in the area.

Mr. John Bernard stated I guess what concerns us is I’ve only been in front of a Planning Board or on the Planning Board for about the last 15 years and I only remember one project that had a negative traffic impact out of 15 years.  Now, I know that all the studies are accurate and I know that you’re standards are nationally recognized.  I don’t find fault with your statistics but there is something that’s intuitively wrong with the fact that if you add 5 cars there’s no effect, if you add 100 cars there’s no effect, if you add 1,000 cars there’s no effect.  Something’s wrong with it.  Maybe it’s just me. 

Mr. Tim Miller responded John, I don’t think that anyone has ever said there’s no effect in any of our studies.  

Mr. John Bernard stated there’s no negative effect. 

Mr. Tim Miller responded well, significant adverse effects are a term used in SEQRA and to a certain extent it’s subjective to a community.  I think in the case of this project, we’ve got 16 homes on Mill Court.  Those homes are going to generate, using ITE numbers, about one trip per peak hour period.  Let’s say we double it and they produce two trips each home, 32 trips in peak hour.  We’re talking on average one car every two minutes, on average.  Traffic doesn’t always work that way.

Mr. John Bernard stated I understand but let’s quadruple it.

Mr. Tim Miller asked why would we quadruple it?

Mr. John Bernard responded just for the heck of it.

Mr. Tim Miller stated okay let’s make it 8 times. 

Mr. John Bernard stated what I’m getting at and I know you understand where I’m headed.  It doesn’t matter.  You can make it 80 trips and there won’t be enough negative effect to make it meaningful.  

Mr. Tim Miller stated what traffic engineers are doing is they’re looking at places where traffic needs to slow down where there’s potential for impacts on health and safety.  In the case of this project that’s what TRC’s report did.  We’re looking at intersections and we’re adding trips to these intersections from 16 homes on Mill Court, 5 on Lexington that are so low that statistically they do not become a factor in the operation of those intersections.  We’re adding traffic that doesn’t even meet the cycle length at a signalized intersection in the area.  There’s no question that there’s going to be trips from 22 homes and I don’t think anybody’s denied that, our reports are very clear about that.  The question is: does it rise to a level that by reducing the density of the project by 5 homes, or by 3 homes, or by 6 homes that the world is better or that an intersection is not working better than it was before.  I think statistically, from an engineering point-of-view, the answer to that is clearly no.  I certainly would like these gentlemen to opine on that because I would be stunned if they came up with a different conclusion to that especially since I’ve sat at the table for it.  So, gentlemen our traffic from 16 homes is going to make a statistically significant difference at any of the intersections that your firm looked at when you reviewed Mr. Dempsey’s report?
Mr. Greg Deloria responded in general probably not but there are definitely situations where you’re very close to the tipping point of the impacts where very little traffic …
Mr. Tim Miller asked at what location here?  Is there a specific location in this project?
Mr. Greg Deloria responded I don’t know off the top of my head I would say Strawberry and Lexington, certainly.  It’s a level of service F in the peak hour today so you’re just adding to the back of the Q in exacerbating those situations.

Mr. Tim Miller asked so is an addition of 2 cars to the back of the Q a significant adverse impact?

Mr. Greg Deloria responded there is a number, you said 2 we don’t know what that number is but who’s assigned to that particular route, I don’t know off the top of my head.  Theoretically, like I said like I started, in general probably not but theoretically yes. 

Mr. Tim Miller stated what I find troublesome, John, is that we’re revisiting a record that’s been prepared, vetted, reviewed publicly by professionals, we’ve a got a final EIS that’s been accepted, we’re ready for findings and now we’re talking about the methodology of the age of the data.  We’ve got a record that started here exactly according to what the townhouse has to do. Scoping in 2005, accept the DEIS in 2007, public hearings, etc.  Why are we hearing these questions right now?

Mr. John Bernard responded I understand Tim, it’s maddening on both sides and it’s a perplexing issue that I don’t really know how to approach or how to deal with it but I’d certainly like to have some better solution than getting the same data fed to all of us all the time and we don’t have that good gut feeling that it’s meaningful.  It’s not your fault.  You’re using all the standard procedures that are correct across the country. 

Mr. Tim Miller stated it seems to me as though this information is trying to be used in a way that is impossible to use in that way.  You have an intuitive sense which is “if there’s more people and more traffic things are going to be more congested.”  And, I think that that’s correct on a big picture intuitive level.  Growth happens, then there’s more congestion, then there’s a possibility of more interactions and accidents and so forth so yes, but when you get down to the knitty gritty what does it mean for an applicant, for a project?

Mr. John Bernard responded to that point I think what it means for us and for the applicant is that perhaps there are some things that can be done to help the traffic situation even though it doesn’t rise to a level of really affecting the whole.  I think that everyone does agree that Red Mill has issues and that the intersections around Red Mill have issues and that maybe with this project that perhaps there is some things the applicant can do to help the Town to improve some of those intersection issues.  I think that’s what we’re thinking. 

Mr. Tim Miller continued we think of Red Mill and Mill Court there’s definitely some things that can be done and we’ve proposed some of those things.  We want to do what we need to do in connection with our impact.

Mr. John Bernard stated which is negligible.  If your impact is negligible then your contribution is going to want to be negligible.  I guess that’s where I’m headed.

Mr. Tim Miller continued who wants to pay more than their fair share?  You wouldn’t want to right?

Mr. John Bernard responded I understand on the other hand you’re looking to feed however small a portion you’re looking to feed a little bit more of a problem into an already failing condition.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated and notably the Strawberry, Red Mill Road intersection.

Mr. Tim Miller stated the law says that we must mitigate according to our impact and let’s stick with the law.  That’s my last comment on that particular issue.

Mr. Robert Foley stated the impact would go beyond just the intersection we’re talking about Mill Court and Red Mill.  People will be buying your houses.  I’m sure you want them to have a safe and complete egress out onto Red Mill, up to Strawberry or down to Trolley and Red Mill and the traffic circle or wherever they’re going.  There’s no wall there at the end of Mill Court and Red Mill.

Mr. Mike Sheber stated one other point and that is that in our DEIS we submitted certain alternatives to alleviate some of the concerns of traffic going on Mill Court and that was to open up Amherst Road.  This was in the purview of the Town Board.  They decided not to do it so we’re left with one access and that’s Mill Court and Red Mill.  We would have been more than happy to design a project where half the homes were going out Amherst and half the homes were going out Mill Court.  This would have reduced the impacts from right now 16 to let’s say to 9 and 9 going out on Amherst Road.  We had a design of two cul-de-sacs.  It was in the purview of the Town Board to authorize the Planning Board to do this.  They didn’t do it so we’re in a situation where we’re locked into only one way in and one way out.  

Mr. Ed Vergano stated just for the record Amherst is a private road.

Mr. Mike Sheber stated the Town Board has a consent agreement.  At any time they can declare Amherst Road a public road.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated I agree with Mr. Sheber on this and I’ve brought it up in the past.  A better planning would have bifurcated this project and split it where 8 if there’s 16 or whatever it ends up on Mill Court, half of them had access through Amherst and then it splits further down towards South Hill or out through Fawn Ridge and for those going that direction.  The other would come down Mill Court and there wouldn’t be any interconnection for cut through traffic which was a major concern of the Wild Birch Farms people on Amherst.  I understand all about the private road.  What I had asked and I know Chris had researched the Resolution from when Wild Birch, which had another name then was approved, and there weren’t any particular conditions in their Resolution apparently, I didn’t see it, for opening up that berm road to the undeveloped land which later became this gentleman’s property.  I don’t know the site plan whether there was a note on the site plan on that.  Again, I was around then, I’m hearing it from people who were involved in that whole project and the approval process. That may need a further look but again you’re right, it’s up to the Town Board.

Mr. Mike Sheber stated one final point, we did traffic counts or we received a traffic report of traffic counts in 2009 and I’m probably being repetitive but those traffic counts indicated that there’s a 20% reduction in traffic in the intersection that you’re concerned with which is Strawberry Road and Red Mill and that’s a 2009 study by a Yorktown consultant.  It’s clear the E&K report and our report are accurate unless I’m missing something here.  It seems to me there’s no need for any further traffic analysis at this point. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated as I said before, my problem with that is based on the findings, the data they were using and how it was analyzed, I think there could have been done a different way.  Don’t ask me to explain it but I’m sure there’s some experts could.  What was taken, what days, how many days, what input was put into the computer modeling and was there curb cutting involved?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think it’s going to be up to this Board to determine whether or not we’re going to go for some additional counts on any of these major intersections and on the roads themselves.  But, one of the things I want to put on the table now because I think this is where we are as a Board would be headed and that is that any one of these things is problematic but when you add up the cumulative effects of this and drainage, and that and the other thing, you make a major impact on the residents in that area.  I think you need to keep that in mind.  It is not just this one thing or that one thing or that other thing it’s all of these things together.  Now I’d like to move into something on drainage at this point because I think that is another major concern of the residents there and I think aptly so.  When you have water running down freely over roads well after a large storm you’ve got a problem.  That water is coming from someplace and going someplace.  Engineers will tell you all the time, and this is my one thing that I think it irks me the way traffic numbers irk John, well we can do that we can mitigate that, we can fix that.  If that were so then there wouldn’t be any water running down from these other houses onto these ones that are at lower part of the topography.  If you could really fix it you wouldn’t have major runoff and pools or water and people’s yards flooded, somebody would have fixed it a long time ago.  I don’t know that everything can be mitigated but at least in theory you might be able to, on paper but I don’t know that that in fact is always true.  It’s kind of like when people want to do blasting and they say “we’ve got that under control” and people as far away as a mile and a half if they’re living on certain – as I do, on a rock outcropping, blasting going on over here, it’s not right next door, it’s not 500 yards away, it’s well away from me and I come home and I’ve got another crack somewhere.  People have told people “we can handle that” yes you can, you’re not going to blow up my house but if you blow another explosive you’ll crack things that shouldn’t have been cracked and over time that becomes my financial problem not yours.  All I’m saying is as we through these concerns lets just be mindful of the fact that we can each make an argument for something or the other especially as professionals.  He can make an argument for traffic the way he sees it and you can make it for the way you see it but it isn’t just traffic.  It’s this and it’s that and it’s the other thing.  Let’s move on to drainage now which is the other major issue for the residents. 
Ms. Susan Fasnacht presented herself and stated I’m with WSP Sells.  Big concern of the residents as you said is storm water – actually the flow of water both surface flow and ground water flow and in reading through where people are from – because I went and looked to see where most of the people were that were complaining, it was Mill Court, Red Mill, Stonefield Lane all the way down towards Trolley which is a natural drainage path from that side of the subdivision down or proposed subdivision downstream.  If you look at the drainage maps, typically you look at first is which way is it flowing, where your drainage divides.  When you look at the existing conditions of the approximately 78 acres on this proposed site only 12 acres of that approximately grades towards that area.  There’s a ridge line in part of the diagrams in the DEIS and the FEIS.  There’s a ridge line at the end of Mill Court at the boundary line of the property it goes west a little bit and then cuts across the property.  It’s really the western end of the property is what drains down to that area.  The cause of the drainage issues in there, I don’t believe that it’s coming from this property.  I believe there’s a lot of issues with soils that are – maybe there’s perched water tables, there’s clay.  It’s hard to say.  Again, you look at the data that’s available from the State studies as far as soil types, they’re supposedly well drained soils, it’s not evident.  I have been out there and seen that it is wet.  You see the seep’s coming out.  There’s evidence of rock outcroppings.  That was brought up by the person who did the hydro-geological report.  I believe there’s water that gets trapped and perched in there and it is coming out – it’s causing a problem and it’s exasperating as you go downstream.  That being said however, with what they’re proposing I don’t really see it making that condition worse.  They have a bad condition now and I don’t see this development making it worse.  They’re reducing the amount of area that’s going to have water flowing to the problem area they’re going from as I said 12 acres down to just under 9 acres.  They’re reducing the peak flow and the 100 year storm, 10 and 1 year storm.  It shouldn’t be making the condition worse.  In fact, where they have more the impervious surfaces which would be the roadway and also 4 of the houses, that’s all being picked up and it’s being directed over to the detention basin.  It shouldn’t be coming into the Mill Court Road area.  
Mr. Ed Vergano asked you’ve mentioned that they’re going to attenuate the peak flow, what about the total volume flow?

Ms. Susan Fasnacht responded I believe it’s reduced Ed because it’s a small area so since it’s a smaller area whenever rain falls on there your volume should be reduced also.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked so not only the grade of runoff would be reduced but the actual total volume runoff would be reduced?

Ms. Susan Fasnacht responded correct, so if you collected every single drop of water coming into that area that’s going out towards the – we’ll say Trolley crossing because that’s the low area, going out towards Trolley crossing it’s actually a reduced total volume that’s going there too.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and that’s taking into consideration their report in your analysis?  The tree cutting, less canopy to protect…

Ms. Susan Fasnacht responded the tree cutting, less canopy, having more impervious area, that doesn’t really change the volume.  You’re still going to have 2 inches of rainfall let’s say falling on an 11 acre area is going to be so many cubic feet of rain total.

Mr. John Bernard asked it’s the same with or without trees?

Ms. Susan Fasnacht responded the same volume.  

Mr. John Bernard asked but does that translate to the same runoff?

Ms. Susan Fasnacht responded no.  He was asking about volume but your runoff will change because you are changing what your coverage is whether you’re going from trees to grass or you’re going from trees to pavement or houses or whatever but because you’re reducing the area, even though you add in these additional impervious and changes and coverage and – the other thing I should say is, they’re also proposing dry wells for the roofs.  There’s only 4 houses that are proposed to go to that direction.  Because of that the peak runoff is also being decreased; where as you would have 21 cubic feet per second at a 100 year storm it’s been reduced to 17.

Mr. John Bernard stated I forget what depth those drywells were designed for, do you remember?

Ms. Susan Fasnacht responded I don’t have that information.  I know that was one of my concerns…

Mr. John Bernard stated but then they would have to get below whatever impervious surface is underlying that whole area.

Ms. Susan Fasnacht responded before they actually do the construction and this is from one of my earlier letters and their response was that they would go out and do some of these testings because you want to look at: 1) yes you don’t want to put it right on top of say a clay layer.  You don’t want to put it right on top of rock.  You don’t want to put it right on top of your ground water.  The New York State DEC has certain requirements as to how far you have to lay from say your seasonal high ground water table.  They’re going to have to go out and do these tests before they can put in the drywells and there’s other options they can use, I forget I put in some suggestions in my letter I had suggested a couple of things, it could even be some surface-type rain garden type things and my understanding is that will be determined more as a design phase in a later part of the project.  It could be attenuated how they do that I think it will be determined.

Mr. John Bernard asked nobody in Town likes rain gardens and I think it’s because they don’t know what they are.  You have any good examples of rain gardens around?  Honestly, people they hear the term and they say “well it sounds good but I’ve never seen one, I don’t like them.”

Ms. Susan Fasnacht responded I don’t know of any up in this area that I could suggest.

Mr. John Bernard stated see that’s a problem.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated no they just didn’t get rain gardens but put a retaining water on site.  I’ve read some reports where some of that water that’s retained on site ends up in a persons basement.  They would rather put water away from the house not keep it towards the house. 
Ms. Susan Fasnacht responded you talk about the ground water in the basements and I know that people have trouble with their septics and I think part of the issue is that this area was developed at a time where you didn’t have the regulations and the requirements to do some of the storm water management that you do today.  I found and I think many engineers here will tell you that your storm water management drives a lot of your designs of the project because this DEC has gotten very stringent on what they require and they’ve also passed the onus of meeting the requirements down to the Town level.  Ed has to sign off on all of this.  It’s not something that the applicant can just say “oh yeah I’m doing it,” and get away with it.  It is being regulated and looked at more carefully.  The problems there exist and it’s really being caused by the applicant’s property.  Yes, he is contributing to it but I don’t think the bulk of it is being caused by his property.  That’s basically my findings. 

Mr. Ed Vergano asked in summary the developed condition will not exacerbate the existing condition?

Ms. Susan Fasnacht responded no.  I know there’s some comments about septics quick addressing that those are along Red Mill and Mill Court.  There will be a new sewer line put down Mill Court and down Red Mill to Stonefield.  That will allow any of those houses to tie in.  I’m sure there’ll be risers put in so that the connections could be done by the houses and how that goes about is something the Town would have to decide.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated for the safety measure would it help to put some interceptive drains to the property line to intercept the potential ground water problem headed in the direction of the residence?

Ms. Susan Fasnacht responded you could do that.  You could put in some trench drains along the property line.  You have to watch where they go.  If you put it along the western property line, that corner where you outlet that, you don’t have the elevation getting back into the development, you could do maybe some up closer to Mill Court adjacent to #9 but when you get down in that corner unless you had some sort of an easement or permission from the other person, you have no place to bring that water once you collect it.

Mr. Robert Foley asked question on the 2 houses in question at least by some of the Board members, including me, off of Red Mill which you addressed in your initial before completeness about the slope’s impact and I don’t know whether you addressed the drainage then and then Mr. Sheber did finally address it to some extent.  Are you saying that area which is below the wetland which it gets very wet after it rains, behind 243 Red Mill, there’s about 4 houses there, is that impacted?  It would be lots 17 and 18 or 20 and 21.  

Mr. Ivan Kline asked you’re talking about the two off of Lexington?

Mr. Robert Foley stated the two off of Lexington and Strawberry.  

Ms. Susan Todd stated 17 and 18.

Mr. Robert Foley end up closer to Strawberry – I mean Red Mill.

Ms. Susan Fasnacht responded I didn’t look at them as closely on this go around.  I was really looking to see what the comments were in the March and April meeting and I didn’t see comments from residents regarding drainage on those two lots, maybe I did miss that but I don’t see it, again, 17 and 18 the drainage from the houses are being treated initially by dry wells and that does flow – part of that in the existing division does flow off towards Red Mill.  In the proposed condition that’s being collected and directed actually back onto the property if you want to call it – back down towards the design point 1 which goes out really to the south.  Where they’re doing their improvements most of that’s being brought back onto the properties as opposed to being allowed to drain back out.

Mr. Robert Foley asked that would be in figure 4?

Ms. Susan Fasnacht responded figure 4 and again if you look at the design point 3 in the pre-construction condition you had 4 acres that went out that way and then in the post it’s going to be 2 acres.  That also has been cut back as far as the amount of runoff is that’s going out onto the adjacent neighbors.
Mr. Robert Foley asked would it be better since those are going to be septic if they were sewer?  Would that be better for those two houses?

Ms. Susan Fasnacht responded to me anytime you put a sewer in it’s much better but if you don’t have the sewers readily available and that makes it cost prohibited that’s a different story.  Yes, sewer would be better.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think boroughs here in the letter that’s very recent dated the 16th, this is the acting Commissioner – at least on one of these that he was acting then he’s something else in another letter – under #5 in storm water he mentions that “the proposed site development plans show a heavy reliance on the use of dry wells for addressing storm water runoff from the individual building lots with some lots receiving as many as 5 dry wells.  We encourage the applicant to consider other more innovatives going stone water management practices such as: rain gardens in situations where they can be applied as alternatives to dry wells which may be unattractive given their construction in steeply sloped areas.”  It may be that we need be looking at – if we’re going to have a ton of these dry wells around, we may want to start looking at something that is less unattractive, that will do perhaps as good or better a job at holding water or retaining water.  I don’t know that we need to align this development with a ton of homes and tons of dry wells which I don’t think…

Mr. Tim Miller stated Mrs. Taylor, dry wells are under the ground.  You don’t see them.  There’s grass planted on top. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated he says that given the fact that you’re going to put some of those on slopes they’re going to be under the ground?

Ms. Susan Fasnacht responded yes.
Mr. Mike Sheber responded yes, absolutely.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked totally?

Ms. Susan Fasnacht responded yes, dry wells are mainly underground.

Mr. Miller stated dry wells are underground so you don’t see them and we think it’s preferable because…

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are those the ones covered with big stones am I right?

Ms. Susan Fasnacht responded it’s like a big man hole with holes on the side and you fill it with stones.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked and with the stones?

Ms. Susan Fasnacht responded and the water goes in and it seeps out into the adjacent ground slowly. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I see a lot of these things around and I always see the stones, the hole and the stones. 

Ms. Susan Fasnacht responded the stones help get it really are there more for strength.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked but you do see the stones? 

Ms. Susan Fasnacht responded no.

Mr. John Klarl stated it’s all sub-surface.

Ms. Susan Fasnacht continued they are completely buried.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated then why do I see these stones in these holes that I’m looking at?

Ms. Susan Fasnacht responded they may be a trench drain.

Mr. Mike Sheber stated it might be a curtain drain. 

Mr. Tim Miller stated it’s a concrete with holes in it.

Mr. John Klarl stated almost as a septic system.

Mr. Tim Miller continued it’s like a cistern almost and it’s buried under the ground and the water just goes, it’s piped into it from a loop leader and then it just slowly infiltrates in the surrounding soil.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked and it’s always in this format?

Mr. John Klarl stated sub-surface.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked but it’s always that way?

Mr. Tim Miller responded yes.  We think it’s a solution.  It takes water that would normally be surface water and puts it into the ground and does so fairly close to the sewers like a rooftop.  

Mr. John Klarl stated kind of keeps it on premises.

Mr. Tim Miller continued keeps it on the premises.

Mr. John Bernard stated and they work forever and ever and ever, correct?

Ms. Susan Fasnacht responded no they have to be maintained.

Mr. John Bernard asked they do?  How often?

Ms. Susan Fasnacht responded it depends on what’s going into it.

Mr. John Bernard asked what kind of maintenance?  How do you fix a dry well?

Ms. Susan Fasnacht responded one of the issues you are required to do with dry wells that is the use for water quality is first of all you have them going into a sump, you’re supposed to put a pre-treatment, if you want to call it a basin to help try and collect some of the debris and that should be cleaned out.  You’re right, you get to a point where they can be cleaned out here and your solution’s you have to dig them up, remove the stone, clean it out and put it back in.  

Mr. Tim Miller stated you know when they’re not working John you can tell.

Mr. John Bernard stated I know.

Mr. Tim Miller stated it gets very wet around the surface.

Mr. John Bernard stated then you have to dig them up and do them over.  That is one advantage to having a rain gardens that are on the surface.  It is an advantage and that maybe one reason that Mr. Burroughs was recommending that.  Other people are recommending that we go to a different treatment systems than the buried dry wells.  It’s just common sense that if you can get away with less maintenance or at least more visible maintenance that you probably can affect the longer term solution.  

Mr. Tim Miller stated we’re doing the best we can and it’s kind of six and one half a dozen or the other when the rain gardens become an issue for homeowners too. 
Mr. John Bernard stated just presenting options. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked but they if they become a problem then the water that is supposed to stay in them goes where?

Mr. Tim Miller responded it’s on the surface. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked and it runs away…

Mr. Tim Miller stated it’s going to run somewhere and the homeowner is going to know it.

Mr. Robert Foley asked what about the adjacent contiguous homeowner?

Mr. Tim Miller responded well if the water gets that far they would know it too.

Mr. Ron Wegner stated I’m speaking to the Mountain View area where a number of residents that have concerns.  The applicant is willing to provide help to the situation that is already there.  There’s developments here, you received a handout today providing curtain drains on the north western corner of the property which is the location where the most complaints of the existing condition seemed to be.  A total of 300 feet on the low point of the property and to install some drainage to connect to existing pipes which the Town has recently installed to divert the water away from the watershed which Susan previously spoke about.  One of the things that would be required for this to be installed is we would need easements or permissions from one or the other of these two property lines on Mountain View.  We can’t get here from here without crossing some properties. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked what are the two numbers of the homes on Mountain View that you’re talking about?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded this one is #7 so this one would probably be 9.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked those are the homes that would benefit from the…

Mr. Ron Wegner responded absolutely, would most benefit.  I believe and I’m not certain if this is a Town-owned property here in between, I’m not certain but I believe so, if it’s not [60:53].

Mr. Robert Foley asked the two house numbers are 9 and what?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded 7.  Those are the lots that we could cross through and actually install…

Ms. Susan Todd asked so it’s a 300 foot curtain drain?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded correct.

Mr. Tim Miller stated the curtain drain would pick up the ground water that’s moving through the underlying soils, put it in a pipe, transport it to a storm system further downstream taking it away from the soils where those homes are. 

Mr. Mike Sheber stated and it would create a redundancy for the dry wells because any excess moisture from the drywells would then run through the curtain drains and be taken away from the property owners.

Mr. Robert Foley asked where does it ultimately end up down at Trolley?

Mr. Mike Sheber responded no.

Mr. Ron Wegner stated I believe the Town has built a diversion for a large amount of acreage around the dry well basins and I believe that pipe is [62:54] am I correct?
Mr. Ed Vergano responded that’s correct.

Mr. Robert Foley asked that would be down by Trolley, Old Oregon Road?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded that would be all the way down Red Mill Road all the way to the ground back there.
Mr. Robert Foley asked where it would all be sub-surface?

Mr. Ron Wegner asked this would capture surface and sub-surface actually, capture them both. 

Ms. Susan Todd asked have people been asked about whether they want this?

Mr. Mike Sheber responded we asked them 5 years ago.

Ms. Susan Todd asked and what was the…

Mr. Mike Sheber responded we didn’t get a positive response and we’d like to try again because we feel that this would solve a lot of the issues of drainage in that corner which Susan said is probably one of the most egregious areas and this would resolve that?

Ms. Susan Fasnacht responded it would certainly help.

Mr. Tim Miller stated people are fussing about drainage and they want it to be better this is one way of doing it and if they don’t want it to be better then it is what it is. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated one of the people who was “fussing about drainage” did speak at the last hearing. 

Mr. Mike Sheber stated she’s one of the property owners that are in that area where we need the permission. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated it was spoken to at the last hearing by a Mountain View resident or several others. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked did you start the construction of the Town connecting the curtain drains inaudible 64:12

Mr. Ron Wegner responded the curtain drain would be a trench that would be dug with perforated piping at the bottom and then filled with gravel which would intercept any ground water headed in this direction towards the depth of the bottom of the trench.
Mr. Tim Miller asked how wide is the trench?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded less than two feet tops.  Two feet wide by 5 feet deep or so give or take.  It’s ground water it’s different from storm water which has peaks…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated it’s ground water will end up in there as well 1:03:54
Mr. Ed Vergano inaudible 65:04 concrete surface and sub-surface drain.
Mr. Ron Wegner responded we could leave the top open to allow 64:15 we could certainly be away with a catch basin at the corner where the water tends to flow [65:15].
Mr. Ed Vergano stated so you don’t surcharge the ground it would have its solid [64:23].  This is a solid type of surface [64:23] flow [64:25] by the surface water [64:29].

Mr. stated [65:29] be consistent with curtain’s [65:33].

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated you need permission to go through those properties…

Mr. Ron Wegner stated we need permission to go through the properties to install this. 

Mr. John Bernard asked Ron does this have an effect on Mill Court?

Mr. Mr. Ron Wegner responded no Mill Court’s over here.
Mr. Tim Miller stated Ms. Taylor, just to recap where we’ve come so far.  We have a traffic study that does not show significant impacts on intersections. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I don’t think it’s helpful to have a summary of your argument.  Can we just move on?  We’re smart.  We understand.  We can remember a) and b).  Let’s just go on to the next issue if we’re done with drainage. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anybody else who needs to make – Board members can you comment drainage?  Let’s just move on.  The next area according to Ed is the area of planning so let’s hear from the consultant there.

Ms. Sarah Brown presented herself and stated with FP Park Associates.  I think the two main items have been covered already: traffic and drainage.  Those were two items that we did not review.  One thing that we did want to mention there was an issue that we had and I know the layout has been changed originally from the review of DEIS and the FEIS, however we’re still concerned with the steep slopes on lot 17 and 18.  Steve, I think you’re going to be speaking more about that but we did want to mention that from when we reviewed the layout of everything.  We’re also concerned with the encroachment into the wetland buffer areas.  

Mr. Ed Vergano stated the extent of the steep slopes disturbance is what you’re concerned about?

Ms. Sarah Brown responded yes, on 17 and 18 where the over 30%, I believe that’s where the driveway area crosses.  There’s quite a large area there that will be encroached on where the access of those two lots, if you go to a shared driveway and it splits off.

Mr. Ivan Kline asked what are the other lots that you have concerns with encroachments to the wetland buffer areas?  Can you just identify those for the record.

Ms. Sarah Brown responded it’s where Mill Court comes in and it would be lot 1 on the alternative layout and 12 and 13 are very close to the wetland areas as well. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked the latest alternative you mean right?

Ms. Sarah Brown responded the latest alternative from the FEIS.

Mr. Robert Foley stated so it’s 1, 12, and 13?

Mr. John Klarl I think those are the three Bob.

Mr. Mike Sheber asked your report that you submitted in relation to the FEIS didn’t you mention any of those issues that you’re discussing now?  Why is that?

Ms. Sarah Brown responded we reviewed for completeness of content and I believe that we did mention before that we were concerned with steep slopes and wetlands.

Mr. Mike Sheber stated it’s not in any of your reports.  Also, lot 1 does not impede any buffer or any wetland.  Neither one of those lots have any impact on any buffer or any wetland.  I think you’re not looking at the plan accurately.

Ms. Sarah Brown stated lots 12 and 13 I just said that they were located close to the wetland. 

Mr. Mike Sheber stated close but there’s no impact. 

Mr. John Klarl stated 12 and 13 she said they were close to wetland areas. 

Mr. Ivan Kline asked when you’re saying “impact” there’s either a regulated disturbance of a buffer or there isn’t.

Mr. Mike Sheber stated right, and there is not.  That’s my point.  There isn’t.

Mr. Tim Miller stated close is close but there is no impact. 

Mr. Mike Sheber stated I think that should go on the record, is that correct?

Ms. Sarah Brown stated I was just raising that we were concerned because they were so close to the wetlands. 

Mr. Mike Sheber asked but they’re not in the buffer?

Ms. Sarah Brown responded no and I didn’t say that. 

Mr. John Klarl stated she said they were close.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I also wanted to just point out that I was a little bit confused by the drawing on the – Steve, on your drawing you have this black line as a demarcation and lot 1 is over on that side.  I think when I saw the latest drawings lot 1 had been flipped to the opposite side, isn’t it?

Mr. Steve Coleman responded I don’t think so.  There’s different layouts but…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there have been a number of them.  

Mr. Steve Coleman stated it depends on whether you’re looking at – I was looking at the alternative plan that’s the recommendation.  That one has it’s own. – I can explain that…  Figure 1-2 and 1-3.
Ms. Sarah Brown responded 1-2 and 1-3 are two alternates.  Lot 1 goes from one side to the other. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that’s what I want to know before we move too steep.  Is there anybody else on the Board who has any concerns about this area of the planning, etc?

Mr. Ivan Kline stated we have any concerns I think we’re deserving the right to express our concerns but you mean questions no I think it’s clear. 
Mr. Steve Coleman presented himself and stated environmental consultant for the Town.  I did the original biodiversity study back in 2005 for the Town and with the applicant.  Unfortunately I was not involved in the deliberations that have occurred since 2005.  I have reviewed the FEIS and all the documentation and reviewed the consultant reports and my initial management  recommendations I think sort of applied in many respects and I think the applicant’s been very sensitive and took a hard look at my initial recommendations and did provide a lot of good, constructive changes to the plan.  My recommendations initially were when the project was proposed to be a 27 lot subdivision and so they’ve made some significant changes based on that initial report.  What I looked at is the primary benefit I can see, I looked at the two plans I think the alternate plan which is figure 1-2 ‘Alternate’ is the one that I think is the best alternative for minimizing impacts to biodiversity and that’s the plan that I focused on.  A few things that I looked at: the interior corridor which is the open space part so is the most important component from a biological standpoint and biodiversity standpoint and that’s consistent with the applicant’s consultants recommendations as well.  What I am concerned about is I don’t think the alternate plan has gone quite far enough to provide the type of protection that’s needed.  The key thing that I looked at in this site is the combination of steep slopes and adjacent wetland areas.  We have slopes in excess of 30% along both sides of the property that go in a north to south direction and one of the things I think the project could be tweaked further to provide better protection of the steep slope areas and what I have looked at and recommended is to maintain that corridor for wildlife.  It’s my recommendation that there be no development on the slopes to the west of the larger open space parts.  I do a black line on the plan that the plan that Planning Board members received and I don’t know if the applicant has gotten that as well.  Basically, to have the road serve as the outer edge of disturbance so that there would be no residential development or disturbance on that slope that goes down towards the wetland area.  What that would do is it preserves the slope impact and when you’re given the 30% slope in those areas and it preserves all the tree canopy.  One of the unique features about the wildlife species is breed of bird population is a good representation of forest interior birds and I think that’s reflective of the habitat that’s within here and then also the adjoining parcels on a north and south end east and west ends.  That’s one recommendation but to accomplish that it would require lots 12 and 13 and 1 to be moved out of that area.  The other impact that’s being proposed is the location of the storm water detention basin which is tucked into the buffer area to wetland B which is the longer linear wetland on the plan.  I’m recommending that the detention basin be moved to where lot 12 and 13 would occur, would pull it outside of the wetland buffer.  Storm water is not usually recommended to be placed within wetland buffers because buffers to wetlands provide their own function hydrology and water is an important element of that but storm water basins bring a whole host of other type of impacts and purposes than a wetland buffer does.  That’s the west of the property. 
Mr. Ivan Kline asked can you clarify something?  You used the word I think “move” 1, 12, and 13 out of there and in your letter you used “eliminate” because there’s really no where to move them.

Mr. Steve Coleman responded to correct that I would suggest that it be eliminated because I don’t feel there’s adequate space unless they reconfigure the lots to see whether they could fit them in elsewhere.

Mr. John Klarl asked did you say eliminate 12 and 13 or 1, 12, and 13?

Mr. Steve Coleman responded I’m recommending based on the alternate plan it would be 1, 12, and 13 on the western side be eliminated.  Following that with the concern about the slopes and wetland combination on the eastern side, I’m concerned with -- there’s a higher percentage of slopes adjacent to the wetland corridor where 17 and 18 are located.  My concern is the disturbance again on steep slope areas the amount of tree cover that would be lost impact nesting and resident transient species that are utilizing that area.  I think it would help preserve more of the natural corridor to connect two properties that are further north.  There is a region of connection of this property that is forested.  It goes through developments but there still is a very good intact wildlife corridor that goes in a north south direction and also to somewhat east and west.  Some of the topo maps actually illustrate that pretty well where there’s some nice forested tracks that help preserve that wildlife corridor.  To accomplish the greatest protection of the slopes and wetland areas and maintain the most important core I think it’s important that the disturbance to the steep slopes be avoided.  It’s not so much as just minimizing the impact it’s really looking at how to avoid impact to the top of the slope as it goes down towards the wetland barrier.  You can make an argument yes it can be mitigated but my recommendation is the intent of the Steep Slopes Ordinance and the wetland Ordinance is to avoid impact first and if there’s justification is that it protects the habitat, it provides the stabilization of a slope and not cause any additional problems by protecting the most important steep slope section.  If you look at how much of a footprint you would need of disturbance on a 30% slope you’re looking at – if you put a 100 foot pad for building a disturbance, you’re looking at probably three times that amount of disturbance to be able to grade and to be able to really protect the integrity of the slope condition.  The other aspect I’m looking at too is I’d like to see more whereabouts 19, 20 and 21 are shown on the alternate plan to extend the protection of that steep slope area further into the lot and to straighten it out so that it’s viewed from across lot 3.  What I’d recommend too is some kind of permanent demarcation so that it’s clearly defined and maybe even labeled so as you take the homeowners that this is sensitive protected area needs to be maintained…
Mr. John Klarl asked what do you like to use for the permanent demarcation?

Mr. Steve Coleman responded there’s different strategies. I’ve seen split rail fences used boulders, sometimes we used up a space close together.  Vegetation could be used and then some signage with posts as well. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked these would be the lots across George Washington on Lexington?  The three affordable lots?
Mr. Steve Coleman responded that’s correct.  There’s three houses there. 

Mr. John Bernard stated it would be nice to get those back property lines moved away back up and uniform.  What was your final recommendation on 17 and 18 down by the wetland area?

Mr. Steve Coleman responded on 17 and 18 I looked at it first in thinking maybe with some rerouting you could still locate properties.  My concern about the amount of steep slope disturbance and my recommendation of being that those lots be eliminated. 
Mr. Robert Foley asked these are the lots off Red Mill, Lexington?

Mr. Steve Coleman responded these are the ones south of Lexington and the northeast corner.  Some of the key things I think that the reason for it is that a lot of the comments in the March and April memos from members of the public that this provides an important open space corridor and I think it’s important to maintain that.  By disturbance on the steep slopes I think we’re going to change the configuration and change the function of the slope/wetland interface.  I think it’s very important that be protected.  You can clear it and replant it or mitigate it but it’s not the same as protecting in a natural condition.  Wildlife species don’t react into changes that quickly.  It’s a sensitive area and we have good mammal species, we’ve got the bird species, we’ve got the special concerned species; the boxed turtles on the site.  It’s a good, small limited area that one other point that I wanted to make on the applicant’s consultant had addressed said it’s not part of the MCA study which is the Metropolitan and Conservation Alliances study.  It was involved in the beginning of setting up that study for the five Town area and the intent of that study was never to be a definitive study.  It was designed to do follow up work of other areas that could be potential candidates to add to the MCA study.  It’s a published report but the intent was never to be that was the only location that was opened to looking at other areas that would contribute to the local wildlife but also on a regional basis and provide that connectivity to other larger corridors.  I just wanted to point out that even though this area is not in it, it has locally and some regional significance in terms of being able to report corridors for wildlife species. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I do recall that at one point when – I don’t know whether I was at a presentation or something – but that point was brought up that it was just the beginning and then they expected the different areas would conduct studies and they would tie into that.  I do remember that. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I was involved too early on with Dr. Klemens and Damon Oscarson.  I was with Daemon up there and I was surprised when he jumped that area and went up to Piano Mountain in the Blair camp because they were larger parcels but it’s still then precluded in the [81:47].
Mr. Steve Coleman stated part of the difficulty was they had a limited scope and limited resources so they tried to capture the key areas and then the hope like I said each Town would follow up and continue to do the research to add additional parcels to that corridor study.  We could probably go on but I think that’s the primary thing.  It’s a pretty heavy recommendation in terms of looking at the impact on biodiversity and by biodiversity is something that’s not as easily quantified and measured as drainage or traffic or other issues.  They have, in a sense, the easy jobs.  They’re dependent upon people and good planning to protect them and preserve it for future generations and I think the intent of the Steep Slopes Ordinance for the Town and the wetlands I think are the two factors that often are strong interconnection in terms of protecting the biological resources.  My recommendation is that we should do whatever we can to avoid impacting those areas instead of just taking the approach of mitigating and not looking at the long term cumulative impact on wildlife.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you very much Steve. 

Mr. Mike Sheber asked what percentage of the wetlands are we impacting in this project?

Mr. Steve Coleman responded based on the alternate plan the road coming in and lot 1 impacts a percentage of the buffer area…

Mr. Mike Sheber corrected I said the wetland, not the buffer.  The wetland.

Mr. Steve Coleman responded the actual wetland?  There’s no direct disturbance that I can see. 

Mr. Mike Sheber asked there’s none?  What percentage of the buffers are we impacting?

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I think these numbers are in the document.  I’m not sure what the point of this sort of cross-examination?

Mr. Mike Sheber stated I think we’re entitled to a rebuttal.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated he hasn’t claimed that the numbers you have are wrong.  He’s giving his views on the project and what would be advisable so I don’t really see the point of turning this into a trial cross-examination.  

Mr. Mike Sheber stated I think I’m entitled – I know a couple of times you’ve cut us off.  I think we’re entitled to ask a couple of questions.  All I want to know is I want to know the basis of his report that’s all.

Mr. Steve Coleman responded I think I gave that to you.  It’s the slope. 

Mr. Mike Sheber stated do you know that 94% of the buffers are not being impacted?

Mr. Steve Coleman responded yes.

Mr. Mike Sheber asked you know that? Okay that’s all.

Mr. Tim Miller stated when Steve made his initial recommendations we modified our plans substantially.  We reduced the density by 5 lots and we moved everything out of the wetlands and we tried to get as much out of the buffers as we could.  We made a lot of good changes and I guess Steve…

Mr. Steve Coleman stated I don’t disagree with that. 

Mr. Tim Miller stated I just want to understand a couple of things.  The steep slopes you’re talking about, are you talking about the driveway crossings to 17 and 18?

Mr. Steve Coleman responded yes, it’s primarily through 17 and 18 where the driveway cuts.

Mr. Tim Miller continued because that driveway crossing is more than 700 feet away from the wetland.  It’s pretty far away.  I’m just having a hard time technically making the connection between that minor disturbance into an area that’s pretty level and highly usable and then adverse impact on the wetland.  That to me is a big stretch.

Mr. Steve Coleman responded in this particular case I’m more concerned about maintaining a corridor that goes to the north. 

Mr. Tim Miller stated let’s talk about the corridor.  

Ms. Beth Evans stated I offered the bio assessment report that part of the EIS and just so we’re clear the Steve’s data I used the information that was available from the MCA and also did on-site evaluations myself of the whole site.  I want to make sure the Board – I asked that Tim’s office prepare some aerials for us with these corridors we’re talking about and we used similar aerials in our report figure HA1 to look at natural dispersion corridors through the site.  This is the site to the south.  This is the central wetland area.  This, in my opinion as a biologist, is the undeveloped area which is north of the site.  The primary dispersal of the corridor for birds and small mammals using this site and likely would move this way into residential back yards and wetlands north of the site.  17 and 18 these lots that are being talked about are sitting up here and were these two houses not built assuming that wildlife were coming this way  they would smack into these houses on the hill, if they went this way they’d end up at the Strawberry intersection.  This is the undeveloped area.  They might be trying to get to but there’s significant, in my opinion, and residential and transportation corridors in between.  When I first saw the 27 lot plan that the applicant first proposed there were houses and roads all through here, those were removed.  I think in doing that, and the reason I said that I thought it was significant to switch a part that had been preserved it opened this area up for wildlife movement to the south.  Now we put the site this way, to the south you have this entire area south from the site and again this is the main corridor for movement to the area.  When I said it wasn’t a main hub or a habitat concern there are certain March made and various public hearings that identified this site as the middle of a habitat hub and it has a specific answer to a comment.  I think the applicant has acknowledged that there’s open space on this site by preserving 43% of the site as part of the open space corridor.  I don’t think that’s a significant combination to all the species resident and seasonal wildlife species using the site. 
Mr. Tim Miller asked so Steve is recommending these three lots that are located on the edge of the corridor be eliminated.  In your professional view is that significant as far as the enhancing the corridor and I would like Steve to answer the same question because three lots may seem like a little thing but where we are with this project it’s a huge thing.  If we’re going to really seriously consider eliminating them I really want to know we’re going to be having a major benefit. 

Ms. Beth Evans responded I can’t answer that question until my – I’m talking primarily about those three lots because these three lots have currently post-conservation areas on them.  Areas where the future homeowners won’t be disturbing or won’t be cutting down trees or won’t be disturbing habitats, yes the houses and driveways will be in there, residential use will be in there but it’s not as though it’s far removed from other residential use nearby.  In my opinion, eliminating these three lots while it will cut less trees and do so many other things that Steve was talking about will not make a significant difference in the quality of this corridor that is being preserved on the site.  Most of the mature forest is down in this area, most of the mature wetland is down in that area and that is not only being preserved through the regulated area but outside of that as well. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated can you turn that back around?  Because, we’re so used to seeing this property one way that it’s confusing to see it the other way. 
Ms. Beth Evans stated this is the corridor that I believe this proposal protects and preserves. 

Mr. Tim Miller asked so the three lots Steve is recommending to be eliminated is here which is right in front of Mill Court.  It’s not part of the undeveloped corridor.  These three lots are – if you go north you’ve got houses on the other side. 

Ms. Susan Todd stated this is a spot that’s actually been bothering me since the beginning because you really shouldn’t be putting storm water drainage basins near wetland or wetland buffer.  I know that you worked hard to try to shift the road so that you cleared it but I think Steve and I certainly feel like that’s a key point in the site to preserve and protect.  I think to move the drainage basins to the point where – I think it’s lot 11 and 12—makes sense.  

Mr. Tim Miller stated it makes sense except that…

Mr. Ron Wegner stated if I can address this.  We’ve received the comment today regarding that particular issue.  I took a look -- what would take to move this pond to this area?  This pond surface, certain features are required by state of a certain size, certain function.

Ms. Susan Todd stated it shouldn’t be…

Mr. Ron Wegner stated first of all I’ll point out that it’s completely removed from the buffer of the DEC wetlands.  Yes, it’s within the buffer of wetland B for a portion but it also avoids impacts to wetland B.  To move this pond we would have to convey [inaudible 94:20] this is the low point we have to treat the storm water [94:24].  We would have to go back to get to another location where this location was recommended. 

Ms. Susan Todd asked you can’t just leave it there, natural the way it is?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded no [94:37]

Ms. Susan Todd asked why?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded State regulations.

Mr. Steve Coleman stated I bet you can you the existing road network to direct it further down to go right through the middle of the steep slopes. 

Mr. Ron Wegner stated by grade the road comes downhill here and we have to capture the water, we can’t bring it back up hill.  To get the water at this point we would have to do tremendous excavation to carry it through the road down, tremendous. It’s possible, but it’s not recommended.  To get to this point we would have to go through the buffer of wetland B in particular we have to go to the more steeply sloped areas it’s either that or lower into the wetland and then to get to this location to get to an elevation where we could work with if we have to be below this point here.  We would have to – since this is more of a plateau area that comes downhill here, we would have to provide further excavation and therefore provide a greater overall disturbance because we have to deeper with a pond.  Also, once again affecting more steep slopes we still couldn’t avoid all the impacts to the buffer to wetland B and with this very grade in excavation we would also potentially be looking at [inaudible 94:43] which also is problem as far as State regulations go.  We have looked at it.  

Ms. Susan Todd asked that would be the storm water drainage function that you had with the build?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded yes.

Ms. Susan Todd asked you’re going to have to do that anyway?

Mr. Ron Wegner. responded required by the State the tree quantities are [96:34] for any development over 5 acres of residents.
Mr. Steve Coleman stated in looking at the topo and the plan and you could split the drainage so that where lot 1 is proposed on the alternate plan could pick up at the road entrance and you can still use lot 12 and 13 for the reminder because you’ve got the slope coming down here. That’s another consideration.  But, I do want to point out that in the DEIS study, in the original recommendation, this one shows a very good colored example of why I’m concerned about it is the slope.  I disagree with Tim’s comment that you have houses right straight up from where the proposed corridor is, you have a steep slope bridge that defines that corridors.  It’s not straight up and down it’s more at an angle that’s why not having anything on the eastern side of the road makes sense.  Yes, you have houses coming up Mill Court on one side but you still have a large north buffer north open space corridor.  It’s a slope here.  You’re looking at 30% slope in most cases that are there and it makes, to me, no sense to disturb that and try  to still protect the function of the corridor.  I’m talking about more a functional open space instead of just protecting and giving us open space that works for the designing the lot count, it’s really looking at the function of area of that and minimizing and avoiding slopes with the intent of your Steep Slopes Ordinance is what it’s all about.

Mr. Mike Sheber asked if you look at – I don’t know if you saw this Steve?  This is our slopes legend.  There’s no disturbance of 30% slopes that have anything to do with lots 12, 13 or lot 1. 

Mr. Steve Coleman responded I’m talking about protecting the corridor.  That doesn’t mean just protecting or minimizing disturbance within that area.  Protecting the corridor means no development within that area.  Yes, your house location is outside of that steep slope area but it’s on part of the slope that goes down to the wetland. 

Mr. Mike Sheber continued it’s not just the houses, it’s the roadway, it’s the driveways.  There’s no impacts on 30% slopes.

Mr. Ivan Kline asked isn’t the driveway for 12 and 13 going through a small area of the greater than 30%?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi responded 40% and then a little bit of 30.

Mr. Steve Coleman stated again, another element and the reason why I recommended…

Mr. Ivan Kline stated so that statement is not correct.

Mr. Mike Sheber responded I accept that.  Insignificant.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated that’s an opinion. 

Mr. Steve Coleman stated and also the reason why we’ve recommended eliminating those as well is because you’re fragmenting the habitat within the corridor.  By putting homes here you’re obstructing the movement patterns that go through that area. 

Mr. Tim Miller stated I don’t understand that.  

Mr. Steve Coleman stated it’s common sense make it a 30% slope and follow that all the way through.  The best thing from a wildlife standpoint is to not have any structures or any residential development within that area. 
Mr. Tim Miller asked I want to understand where we’re fragmenting the corridor?

Mr. Steve Coleman responded the goal is to protect the slope.  Putting houses here in fact creates fragmentation within the open space parcel. 

Mr. Tim Miller asked could you show me on the aerial photograph because I can’t see it on this colored thing?

Mr. Steve Coleman responded it’s not shown on the aerial of the slopes.  I can’t see the detail on the slope.  I can’t point out anything when it’s not there.
Mr. Tim Miller stated we’ve got the driveways and the house locations…

Mr. Steve Coleman stated if you follow the slope based on your map here which you guys put together it goes sort of like this that would be where your steep slope is that’s the corridor. 

Mr. Tim Miller stated you see that as a significant fragmentation. 

Mr. Steve Coleman responded I see that as a significant fragmentation of the open space parcel.

Mr. Tim Miller stated really. 

Mr. Steve Coleman responded yes. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder presented himself and stated CAC’s memo supported what Steve said.  The disturbance of the slopes on 17 and 18 concerned us so we recommend the elimination and the same thing with biodiversity corridor and we recommended elimination of the same lots that he spoke of. We also included either 5 or 6 to open up the area more because that’s a shared driveway.  In addition, one other thing was that whatever gets developed if it gets developed we recommend that there be a tree preservation plan for each lot to protect against damage or in construction and that the plan be monitored by a certified arborist.
Mr. Steve Coleman stated one thing I wanted to put on the record too, in my original management report Chris pointed out which I forgot mention is that I had also recommended in the original layout to look at relocating lots 14 through 16 which are exactly where 12 and 13 are located on the alternate plan.  It’s not a new recommendation it was something that was brought up initially as part of my initial report back in 2005.  

Mr. John Bernard stated one of the questions I’m a little confused, are you saying that there is a corridor through the property?

Ms. Beth Evans responded absolutely.

Mr. John Bernard stated because in your letter of November of ’09 you said there weren’t any.  Your letter in the FEIS of November 11th, 2009 “subject property is not immediately adjacent to nor in contact with any of the biodiversity corridors, biodiversity hubs or biotic planning units identified in the Croton Biodiversity Plan.”
Ms. Beth Evans stated and I stand by that statement.  They didn’t identify all of the corridors. 

Mr. John Bernard asked why is this statement in here?

Ms. Beth Evans responded because there was a statement at one of the public hearings, the DEIS public hearing I don’t recall exactly which one that this project fragmented one of the hubs or corridors identified in the MCA study.

Mr. John Bernard stated that’s genius.  That’s absolute genius.

Ms. Beth Evans stated no sir, I’m just stating the facts.
Mr. John Bernard stated I understand what you’re doing.  Back on the first part of the letter where you’re talking about the loss of tree cover.   You’re saying that “the loss of some species of trees does not affect the overall biodiversity of the project site because there’s still some species of those trees left.”  In my mind when I was reading that I jotted a note down and said does that mean that if you leave one tree of each species that your biodiversity is not affected on that site?  Is that what that means?  By your definition of biodiversity you still have the same mixture of trees; you’ve got an oak, and a maple, and a cherry and now you have 500 oaks, 500 cherries, 500 maples but if you leave one of each you still have the same biodiversity.  Is that statement true?

Ms. Beth Evans responded it depends who you ask.

Mr. John Bernard stated I’m asking you.

Ms. Beth responded technically as I [104:00].

Mr. John Bernard stated so your statement is true as written.  That’s very clever. 

Ms. Beth Evans asked Steve, your report that you are recommending elimination of all the development to the east side of the road and you said the only development that would impact that is left was the storm water basin but moving storm water basin down to this location is actually moving it closer to the State regulated core wetland and out of the plateau that is down slope of wetland B.  We did an evaluation five times waiting for wetland B jump up and show me what a valuable wetland it is.  I didn’t notice anything in your report that talked about the quality of this buffer versus the quality of this buffer.  I was questioning whether moving down slope into a miniature forest is directly contiguous to the same wetland is now opposed to be part of conservation easement area if that’s better than moving it up here. 

Mr. Steve Coleman stated this is the first that I’ve seen this proposed plan and I’m not certain that I would agree in terms of where they’re locating the detention basin, if that’s the best strategy because I had recommended where lots 12 and 13 are shown where the house locations are which would pull it further up slope and then also there’s an opportunity to look at it in terms of where lot 1 is that it could be a split system so the size of those basins could be reduced but the main goal overall is to pull it outside of the wetland buffer to area B and to relocate it further west than what’s shown on the plan.  I’m not convinced by looking at that without further analysis that that’s the best strategy of where they have sited the basins.  That’s just because I haven’t had a chance to look at it.  I think there’s more creative opportunities to look at that. 
Ms. Beth Evans stated I just wanted to point out that in my opinion wetland B and the other wetlands on the site are not [86:20] samples.

Mr. Tim Miller stated how deep a hole would you need to dig to put the basin where the houses are that Steve’s recommended?

Ms. Beth Evans responded not deep.  These steep slopes here are primarily, they’re lot controlled slopes, they’re aware that they are very close to the surface.  Some of them are actually small cliffs and so what we’re talking about in terms of getting storm water down here or even down there requires blasting I think the Chair expressed concerns about blasting.  In terms of where the storm water management works on the property yes it’s proposed partially in the wetland buffer but it’s a buffer [86:44] slope of a [86:46] ground.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked a question for Steve.  When I look at this map that you referred to [86:55] 1-2 ‘Alternate’, lots 4, 5 and 6 and to some extent 7 all impact existing slopes in the neighborhood of 30% yet you didn’t specifically mention anything about those lots being – you made a statement that any development takes about 30% more of an area than your pad does.  I think that’s what you said.  What’s your opinion on 4, 5, and 6?

Mr. Steve Coleman responded I looked at that area.  The slopes according to the maps are less than 30%, these are in the 20-30% and because from my standpoint the main corridor, which is the open space parcel is the most important and what I looked at here was to create a corridor along the rear of the lots.  They have a 2 acre conservation easement area in the front but what I had looked at was to try to extend that so there would be a lane or a travel way connecting 5 over to 2 to provide more of a natural corridor then to do the same thing on the southern end on the west side.  I felt that it was a little – under a normal situation building on slopes is not recommended but in this case you’re dealing with trying to strike a reasonable balance with the number of lots in protecting the main corridor area.  My feeling was that the middle corridor, the north south corridor was the most important feature of the property and this area could be mitigated more effectively.
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi continued because 12 and 13 abutted this corridor you felt that that was the overwriting factor of eliminating those two lots than versus doing anything with 4, 5, and 6 which would not have benefited as much.

Mr. Steve Coleman stated there’s not a clear connection and we’re trying to establish a connection by getting a good back yard area between it but there’s not as functional connection as there would be further north and south direction. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked another question for Tim and Sheber, the dotted lines you showed here, are they realistic in terms of the extent of the disturbance?  I know what the answer’s going to be but it’s worth asking that question. 

Mr. Mike Sheber responded ask Ron, he’s the engineer.  They’re the ones who came up with the disturbance.

Mr. Ron Wegner responded what I’ve done for the purpose of construction, I go a minimum of  say 5 feet or so outside of any line of grading we’re aware of first moving has to be – depending on if there’s a yard or something to be there.  I try to give you [110:20]

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked so there’s no disturbance, literally no disturbance on 12 and 13 of any sloped area basically except for the driveway?

Mr. Ron Wegner stated and that’s how it has to be based on regulations and comments from your Board. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated there is a little bit in 13 Tim in the back yard. 

Mr. Tim Miller stated those are 15-30%.
Mr. Robert Foley stated but the cutting of the shared driveway at the beginning off the cul-de-sac is greater than 30?

Mr. John Bernard stated but Ron, you said you allow 5 feet outside.

Mr. Ron responded 5 or 10 some reasonable number and I try to provide a parameter around the building. 

Mr. John Bernard stated which should be sufficient.

Mr. Steve Coleman stated one of the strategies which I had put in the report as well is to look at putting, extending it the conservation easement and the demarcation behind the lots so that you have a permanent barrier so that future residents know that it’s a protected area.  
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’ve reached the point now where we’ve got to wind this down. There’s been a lot that we’ve gotten from the consultants here tonight and the Board obviously has still a lot to think about in terms of where we’re going to go with this.  I think that probably we need to cap this at this point.  I really don’t know where the Board is going to go at this particular moment but we need some time.  Clearly we’re not going to be able to make a decision tonight of what we want to do with this.  We’ve got to think about some of the things that we’ve heard, probably reassess some of the positions we have but I can tell you certainly from my point-of-view some of these homes will have to go for me to talk about approving.  In other words I’d like to start saying what can we approve and see what the Board where they would go on that.  But, for me certainly some of these homes would have go and I would like another opportunity for the Board members to have – go with that.  What is it that they see in this design that they can approve of and I don’t think we’re ready to do that tonight so we may have to have another meeting here and thrash this out. 

Mr. John Klarl stated for our next agenda I think this is under ‘old business’.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it’s under ‘old business’ and unless there’s an extension from the applicant a decision would have to be rendered by the June meeting.

Mr. John Klarl stated the last meeting was April 6th, we had a 60-day clock and just said that it would be the May/June meeting we’d ask the applicant to at least extend our time to our July meeting right now.  Right now it would be the June meeting. 

Mr. Tim Miller asked why don’t we talk about it at the June meeting?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you’re going to be on the May meeting next week so there can be some discussion then.

Mr. John Klarl stated staff has to clear up based upon…

Mr. Tim Miller stated we’d like to see that happen. 

Mr. Mike Sheber stated my suggestion would be July meeting is fine.  I think what might be appropriate is to have another work session this way we could discuss with you your proposal and what lots you feel are necessary to be removed for approval and I think at that point we can decide how this is going to go.  Right now it seems to me we’re still a little bit undecided, at least from our perspective and I think also from your perspectives.  I think another…

Mr. John Klarl stated our next agenda is the May agenda was under ‘old business’, actually we don’t have a heavy agenda that night so we can get some initial thoughts. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked right, and then are you thinking of another meeting maybe in mid to late May prior to the June meeting?

Mr. Mike Sheber responded if you’re going to extend it to July we would definitely agree to July as being…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated let’s move it out because I don’t want to have our regular meeting consumed with this that would not be appropriate.  There are other people who are on the agenda who want us to take sufficient time for their matters so let’s think about another meeting of this sort and then we can thrash this out a little bit more. 

Mr. John Klarl asked so maybe under ‘old business’ the next time we can talk about another special meeting date?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes. 

Mr. John Klarl stated the applicant thought tonight you were consenting to a July meeting extension for a decision by the Board. 

Mr. Mike Sheber responded that’s fine.  That’s okay with us. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated between now and the May meeting the staff will try to summarize some of the substantive track of the drainage and biodiversity and other issues that we heard about.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated my own view would be we should – I don’t believe we have too many really extensive unless I’m forgetting about one, public hearings coming up that were timed out for June.  I think that we should discuss this next week under ‘old business’ and maybe just try to put it on the June agenda without shouting at the Board, essentially give its thoughts and direct staff also.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we only were supposed to – probably we were looking at an hour and a half for this because we still have another item to deal with.  Maybe this was prolonged.  There were a lot of us here, each of us has an opportunity to speak but as I said I think at our regular meeting when we have an agenda we don’t really want to take too much time with one application and I think – I haven’t seen the agenda so I don’t really know what it looks like. 

Mr. John Klarl stated we just saw it this morning.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated there are three public hearings on May 4th and then this is the next item under ‘old business.’

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you have Upland Lane and you have the Hersh Plaza DEIS are the big public hearings.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated but Hersh is fairly…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we don’t expect a big crowd for that. 

Mr. John Klarl stated the two are really Upland Lane and ACE Sport Realty. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated Upland certainly will be somewhat problematic.  

Mr. Ivan Kline stated my point is by the time we get to this under ‘old business’ in May I think you’re going to know what you’re June agenda is going to look like as well.  We might just be able to put this on in June as to time to try and thrash out and render a decision. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we can always put it on and decide at the point how this meeting is going, how much time are we going to be spending on it.  I think if we’re spending more than 30 or 40 minutes it’s just too much.  There are other things we have to do.  If you want to put them on for the June meeting, May ‘old business’ we can sort of see where we’re going.  You’ll have those thing – you won’t have the thing summarized by that time?  That’s just next week. 

Mr. John Klarl stated unless we just did a one-sheet summary. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated maybe we’ll look at is what we’ve summarized and see if in fact that we want to add anything to that summary or whatever and that will be the working points for the next discussion.  I want to thank everybody for coming out and we really do appreciate your attendance and input and you made life a little more difficult.

PB 5-10      b.
Referral from the Town Board of a proposed Draft Zoning Amendment dated February 1, 2010 with respect to changes to the Town Zoning Code Section 307-4 (Definitions), 307-14 & 15  (Table of Permitted Uses) and the addition of a new Section 307-65.5,  (Contractor’s Yards) and 307-65.6 (Specialty Trade Contractors.)

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked can we talk briefly about the Contractor’s Yards issue.
Mr. Ed Vergano stated the charge from the Town Board’s staff is to develop criteria that would help to minimize impact to adjacent residential areas from Contractor’s yards.  You have copies of what we believe would help mitigate noise, fugitive dust odors and other typical impacts that you have in contractor yards.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you’ve got two things; you’ve got the original referral from the Town Board way back – the referral’s dated March 12th and we’ve recently gave you a quasi-review memo with some background information and we also changed some of the format of the two different sections which is our Contractor’s Yards and Specialty Trade Contractors and we summarized the major differences which both of these are now permitted as of right.  They’re recommended to be permitted by Special Permits.  There’s a list of criteria that would further regulate them as Ed mentioned with respect to buffering distances, noise, odor and dust control.  The biggest issue is that certain uses such as: composting, rock crushing grinding have very large buffering requirements, 1,000 feet unless they can be contained within a building and if they’re contained within a building they don’t have that 1,000 foot buffer requirement.  It is not impossible to do some of these types of uses in a building.  As I always point out the County’s entire recycling facility down in Yonkers, the MERF is inside a building.  Those are the main issues and these issues are still guided by the Moratorium so the Town Board extended the Moratorium until the end of June.  What they would like if possible is to hold a public hearing on this in June to try to get a recommendation back to the Town Board if you want some of the language changed. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated some of the other issues are there the site has to be within the honor within 1,500 feet of the State Highway, that would eliminate a lot of properties say in the Verplanck area from consideration for Contractor Yards.  Prohibited of activities: garbage or waste transportations, mining, storage processing or handling on site of contaminant materials, waste materials as of find in etc. or hazardous materials as defined in etc, etc.  

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it significantly regulates where these things can be…
Mr. John Bernard asked one of the questions I had was that you’ve got a 65 decibel limit maximum?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated on the borders.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated our current Code required that. 

Mr. John Bernard asked the current Code is 65?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded during the daytime it’s 65 at the border, at night it’s 55. 

Mr. John Bernard stated I think what it said in there is that it was during the day you would run it at 65 for no more than 2 hours at a time. 

Mr. Ed Vergano responded 2 hours, right. 

Mr. John Bernard stated I didn’t understand what the purpose of that was. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and then at the rest of the day at 55 they said. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I think they were going to change that.

Mr. Robert Foley asked to what though?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded “noise level should not exceed 65 decibels for more than 2 hours during any work day at the boundaries of the residential districts nor shall any unreasonable intrusive noise be created.”  Then we tried to define “unreasonably intrusive noise.”  “Otherwise operation shall not exceed 55 decibels during the work day at the boundaries of the residential districts.  

Mr. Ivan Kline stated we need to vote to schedule the public hearing. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated what’s the [128:48] on next week’s meeting?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated scheduled public hearing for June and there are four questions that we had to get some feedback from the Planning Board about how to handle legal existing Contractor’s Yards now.

Mr. Robert Foley asked where are the four questions on this?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated page 2 it says “there are 4 options that we would like the Planning Board to consider.”  Bottom of page 2 onto page 3 does it say “four options?”

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated “initial for the Planning Board to focus on.”

Mr. Ed Vergano stated “allow any legal existing Contractor Yard to continue to be regulated under the current Contractor’s Yard standards now and in the future.”  It’s obviously advantageous to the business owner.  #2) “Any legally existing Contractor’s Yard existing on the date of the enactment of this Local Law shall be deemed to be granted a Special Permit as provided per here and regardless to whether they comply with any of the requirements of this provision.  Any future expansion of legally Contractor Yards will be required to meet the conditions of the new Special Permitted requirements.”

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated they can continue to exist but at the time of sale or an enlargement they then need to sort of grand-fathered.

Mr. John Bernard stated so they’re grand-fathered and if they expand they have to come under the new restrictions. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded well I’m not sure. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated you’re right but they may not ever be able to come under this criteria that’s why we threw option 1 in.  “they may not be physically not be able to…”
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated option 1 is not the same as option 2.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated we put option 1 in to say…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated instead of option 2.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded right, exactly.  We could also render all legally existing Contractor Yards as non-conforming per section 307-77 of the Zoning Code so again, you can’t expand a non-conforming right Contractor’s Yard.  4) “Allow them to continue to be regulated under the current Contractor Yards standards, however, require to comply with new subsections b), c), e), m) for the [130:59] Contractor Yards Special Permit language.”  Again, that relates to noise and odors and dust.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated those are the things to think about when you have to make a recommendation back to the Town Board.  The other big thing is with Specialty Trade Contractors if you recall what it currently says now or one or two or three Specialty Trade Contractors then it says “etc.” and we’ve eliminated “etc” and actually defined every single Specialty Trade.

Mr. John Klarl stated “etc” was the subject of a lot of the Zoning Board of Appeals applications.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so we’re going to bring this back in May.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it is on the agenda for May to schedule a public hearing for June.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked did you want our input at the May meeting on these four questions or we can wait until June?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated not necessarily but just keep in mind that certain people will be coming to probably both maybe the May meeting and the June public hearing because don’t forget there are uses that have been stopped by the Moratorium for months. They’re interested in what this new language has to say.  

Mr. Ed Vergano stated some people with their attorneys in connection with the prohibitive uses, mining operation they feel they’re possibly being singled out.  You’re going to hear that. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated with a paragraph full of permitted uses how are they being singled out?  It would be different if [132:45].

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated obviously this ends up at the Town Board, they have to hold their own public hearing and then their the ones who are going to decide.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what is the purpose of two hearings?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded believe it or not I think they want to change that and I think they want to refer this to the Planning Board for your review and comment but not required to have your own public hearing.  

Mr. Ed Vergano stated you’re going to get one property owner who wants to conduct mining operations on his property.  In other words, he wants to be able to bring in concrete, chop it up, recycle it, bring in big rocks and make big rocks into little rocks. 

Mr. John Klarl stated this is an applicant we’ve heard from before?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded right.   That would prohibit a development from processing their own rocks.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated for a subdivision or site plan you have to remove a lot of rock and you crush it on site, that’s permitted. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated but as a business activity to bring in rock or material, crush it, process it, sell it, that’s prohibited.



*



*
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ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think we need a motion to adjourn. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I entertain a motion to adjourn the special meeting. 

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Next Meeting: TUESDAY, MAY 4, 2010
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